
000001



000002



000003



CITY OF OAKLAND 
 

HOUSING, RESIDENTIAL RENT AND RELOCATION BOARD MEETING 
January 10, 2019 

7:00 p.m. 
City Hall, Hearing Room #1 

One Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, Oakland, CA 
 

MINUTES 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

The HRRRB was called to order at 7:05 p.m. by Acting Board Chair Robert 
Stone 

  

2. ROLL CALL 

MEMBER  STATUS  PRESENT  ABSENT  EXCUSED  
     
D. Mesaros Tenant             X                                           
T. Hall  Tenant Alt.  X 
Ed Lai  Homeowner Alt.           X          
R. Stone  Homeowner  X                     

      M. Cook  Homeowner  X          X            
      J.  Warner           Homeowner              

     K. Blackburn.  Homeowner Alt. X          X                  
     K. Friedman Landlord  X 
     B. Scott  Landlord Alt.                   X     
               

Staff Present 
 
Kent Qian   Deputy City Attorney 
Ubaldo Fernandez Deputy City Attorney 
Chanee Franklin Minor Program Manager 
Barbara Kong-Brown Senior Hearing Officer 
Kelly Rush  Acting Program Analyst I 

3. CONSENT ITEMS 

a. Board Minutes for Approval, December 13, 2018 

K. Friedman  moved to approve the minutes. T. Hall seconded. The Board 
voted as follows: 

Aye:  T. Hall, R. Stone,  K. Friedman, K. Blackburn, M. Cook 
Nay:      0 
Abstain: 0 



2 

 

 The motion was approved by consensus. 

4. OPEN FORUM 
a. William Wiebe 
b. James Vann 
 

5. NEW BUSINESS 

a. Appeal Hearings in: 

i. L17-0083, Abidi v. Tenants 

Appearances:   Keivan Abidi  
     No Appearance by Tenants 
    
The owner appealed from a hearing decision which denied an exemption on the 

basis of substantial rehabilitation because the owner did not provide contracts, invoices 
and proof of payment. The owner contended that the work was done in 19988 and it was 
unreasonable to require such documentation of costs and the work was done. 

The owner contended that he provided the records and receipts for the work done 
that was  provided by the company that did the work. He also provided a document from 
his accountant to the IRS to substantiate the costs. These documents were not provided 
at the underlying hearing. The 2009 valuation used by the hearing officer was incorrect. 
The expenses were in 1997 and based on the 1997 construction table, his costs meet the 
requirements for construction costs.  

After arguments made by the owner, questions and Board discussion, K. Friedman 
moved to  affirm the hearing decision based on substantial evidence. T, Hall seconded. 
The Board voted as follows: 
 

Aye:  T. Hall,  K. Friedman, R. Stone, K. Blackburn 
Nay:   M. Cook 
Abstain:   0 

 
The motion was approved by consensus. 

ii. L17-0018, Ghahyaz v. Tenants 
 
 Appearances:  Issac Jacobson-Owner Appellant 
      No appearance by tenant 
 
 The owner appealed from a hearing decision which denied the owner’s petition for  
exemption on the basis of substantial rehabilitation because 1) the owner took longer 
than two years to complete the project and 2) he failed to meet the 50% construction 



3 

 

requirement for a substantial rehabilitation exemption. 

The owner stated that his financial troubles during construction should be good 
cause to waive the 2 year requirement and the hearing officer should not have 
disallowed work if there was no invoice or receipt. 

The owner representative contended  that the property was  uninhabitable when  
the owner purchased it and he doubled the square footage and put a tremendous amount 
of work into the building. $210,000 was allowed against the $331,000 requirement. All 
labor costs were excluded because the owner did not provide invoices although the owner 
provided cancelled checks and testimony. $169,441 was incurred in labor costs, which 
would more than meet the $331,000 benchmark requirement for substantial rehabilitation.  

 
Permits were issued in 2006 and the work was finished in 2016. There was good  

cause to extend time. The owner had financial troubles. There was a notice of default in 
2006. He filed bankruptcy in 2009, there was a trustee sale in 2010 and he lost his house. 
He also sustained a property tax default through 2011.  

 
After arguments made by the owner representative, questions and Board  

discussion, K. Friedman moved to affirm the hearing decision because the owner’s failure  
to complete the project within two years did not constitute good cause. M.Cook seconded. 
The Board voted as follows: 
 

Aye:      T. Hall, R. Stone, K. Blackburn, M. Cook, K. Friedman 
Nay:      0 
Abstain:   0 

 The motion was approved by consensus. 
 
   iii. T17-0421, Nanos v. Jerez 
 
 Appearances:  Angela Sandoval Owner Appellant Representative 
      No appearance by tenant 
 
 The owner appealed from a hearing decision which granted a tenant petition for  
decreased housing services based on the owner’s refusal to allow his partner and 
daughter to move into his two bedroom.unit. 
 
 The owner representative contended that there are four reasons to grant the  
appeal: 
 

1) Consent for replacement tenant is not a housing service under the Rent  
Ordinance. Housing services are repairs, maintenance, water, heat, etc.; 
 
2) The owner’s process for reviewing applications for sublease is not a housing  
 service; The hearing decision granting the tenant petition is an unlawful     



4 

 

 taking and there are insufficient facts to support a finding that the denial was   
 unreasonable; 

 
 3)  There is a prior hearing decision in T16-0727, Gottfried v. Bacon, with similar 

facts in which the decision determined that the tenant’s claim for decreased 
housing services based on the owner’s denial of consent for a replacement 
roommate was beyond the jurisdiction of the Rent Board; 

 
4)  The tenant had full use of the 2nd bedroom and there was no loss of use.  

   

After arguments made by the owner representative, questions and  Board  
discussion of the issues,  K. Friedman  moved to reverse the hearing decision on the 
grounds that this does not constitute decreased housing services. R. Stone added a 
friendly amendment that the denial of the tenant’s occupant does not constitute 
decreased housing services,which was accepted. M. Cook  seconded. K. Friedman 
withdrew the motion. K. Blackburn offered a friendly amendment to remand for a 
repayment schedule. 
 

 K. Friedman restated her motion to overturn the hearing decision and remand to 
the hearing officer for development of a repayment schedule. M. Cook seconded.The 
Board voted as follows: 
 

Aye:     T. Hall, R. Stone, M. Cook, K. Friedman, K. Blackburn  
Nay:    0 

 Abstain: 0 
 

The motion was approved by consensus. 

6. SCHEDULING AND REPORTS 

Ms. Minor reported on the status of appointment of new board members, that there 
will be new members joining the Board in the near future. Interviews for two landlord seats 
as well as a tenant and neutral representative have been conducted and are moving 
forward in the process. 

Removal from the Board is for cause pursuant to Section 601 by of the City 
Charter. Cause is listed in Section 8.22.040 B (2) of the Rent Ordinance which 
includesconviction of a felony, incompetence, inattention, or inability to perform duties. 
The Mayor may also choose not to re-appoint a member. 

The Board requests a recommended policy from staff regarding absences. Some 
of these issues, e.g. notification of absences can be addressed by the Board as an 
agenda item, and forming a subcommittee would not save substantial amount of time due 
to staffing issues and Brown Act issues. This item will be calendared for the  for February 
28, 2019, Board meeting.  



5 

 

7. ADJOURNMENT 

The Board adjourned at 9:00 p.m. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



000009



000010



000011



000012



000013



000014



000015



000016



000017



000018



000019



000020



000021



000022



000023



000024



000025



000026



000027



000028



000029



000030



000031



000032



000033



000034



000035



000036



000037



000038



000039



000040



000041



000042



000043



000044



000045



000046



000047



000048



000049



000050



000051



000052



000053



000054



000055



000056



000057



000058



000059



000060



000061



000062



000063



000064



000065



000066



000067



000068



000069



000070



000071



000072



000073



000074



000075



000076



000077



000078



000079



000080



000081



000082



000083



000084



000085



000086



000087



000088



000089



000090



000091



000092



000093



000094



000095



000096



000097



000098



000099



000100



000101



000102



000103



000104



000105



000106



000107



000108



000109



000110



000111



000112



000113



000114



000115



000116



000117



000118



000119



000120



000121



000122




